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This matter came on f o r hearing before the New 

Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , DAVID BROOKS, Hearing 

Examiner, on Thursday, J u l y 26th, 2001, a t the New Mexico 

Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department, 1220 

South Saint Francis Drive, Room 102, Santa Fe, New Mexico, 

Steven T. Brenner, C e r t i f i e d Court Reporter No. 7 f o r the 

State of New Mexico. 
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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

8:15 a.m.: 

EX7AMINER STOGNER: This hearing w i l l come t o 

order. Please note today's date, Thursday, J u l y the 2 6th, 

2001. The docket number i s 24-01. 

At t h i s time c a l l Case Number 12,698, which i s 

the A p p l i c a t i o n of Mewbourne O i l Company f o r compulsory 

p o o l i n g , Eddy County, New Mexico. 

C a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce of Santa Fe, 

repr e s e n t i n g the Applicant. I have two witnesses t o be 

sworn. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any other appearances? 

MR. FELDEWERT: May i t please the Examiner, 

Michael Feldewert from the law f i r m of Holland and Hart and 

Campbell and Carr. I'm appearing on behalf of th r e e 

d i f f e r e n t p a r t i e s today: Harvey E. Yates Company, Jalapeno 

Corporation and Shinnery Investments, and I have no 

witnesses. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any other appearances? 

W i l l the two witnesses please remain standing and 

be sworn? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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D. PAUL HADEN, 

the witness herein, a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the record? 

A. My name i s Paul Haden. 

Q. Where do you reside? 

A. Midland, Texas. 

Q. Who do you work for? 

A. I work f o r Mewbourne O i l Company as a landman. 

Q. Have you pre v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the D i v i s i o n 

as a petroleum landman? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And were your c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert accepted 

as a matter of record? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the land matters 

i n v o l v e d i n t h i s A p p l ication? 

MR. BRUCE: May i t please the Examiners, I ' d 

tender Mr. Haden as an expert petroleum landman. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any objection? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: So q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Haden, could you r e f e r t o 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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your E x h i b i t 1, i d e n t i f y i t f o r the Examiner and describe 

what Mewbourne seeks i n t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. E x h i b i t 1 i s a land p l a t of the area. I t 

o u t l i n e s our proposed spacing u n i t i n yellow and our 

proposed w e l l l o c a t i o n i n the pink dot. Also attached t o 

the land p l a t i s the ownership of the spacing u n i t . There 

are f i v e separate s t a t e o i l and gas leases which comprise 

t h i s u n i t . 

Q. And what i s the w e l l u n i t , the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n ? 

A. The l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n i s the east h a l f of Section 

15 of Township 21 South, Range 2 7 East, i n Eddy County, New 

Mexico. 

Q. Okay. What does Mewbourne seek, i n s o f a r as 

pooling? Does i t seek t o pool a l l depths, or are the 

depths l i m i t e d ? 

A. The depths are l i m i t e d . Mewbourne seeks t o pool 

depths below the base of the Yates formation, through the 

base of the Morrow formation. This would include 4 0 acres 

i n the northwest and southeast quarter, as t o pooled 

acreage, and then 160 acres f o r the southeast q u a r t e r , and 

obviously 320 acres f o r the east h a l f of Section 15. 

Q. Okay. Now, the attachment t o E x h i b i t 1 l i s t s the 

i n t e r e s t ownership. Which of these i n t e r e s t owners does 

Mewbourne seek t o force pool a t t h i s time? 

A. Mewbourne seeks t o force pool Harvey E. Yates 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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Company, Cibola Energy Corporation, Yates Energy 

Corporation and Jalapeno Corporation. 

Q. Okay, you have come t o terms w i t h the other 

i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes, we have. Tenison O i l Company has agreed t o 

j o i n w i t h us, as w e l l as Marbob Energy Corporation. They 

have signed a j o i n t operating agreement and AFE. 

Q. What i s the footage of the w e l l l o c a t i o n ? 

A. The footage i s 2232 f e e t from the south l i n e and 

1980 f e e t from the east l i n e of the Section 15. 

Q. Now, t h a t l o c a t i o n i s unorthodox, i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And has t h a t l o c a t i o n been approved by the 

D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, i t has, by NSL-4606. 

Q. Now, l e t ' s discuss your e f f o r t s t o o b t a i n the 

j o i n d e r of the three nonconsenting or four nonconsenting 

p a r t i e s . Just b r i e f l y , what are E x h i b i t s 2A, 2B and 2C? 

A. 2A, 2B and 2C i s a summary of the communications 

between the poolees. I t l i s t s s p e c i f i c dates of 

communications. Also attached as t o each r e s p e c t i v e 

company i s a copy of the correspondence and/or notes as t o 

conversations w i t h these e n t i t i e s . 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s not do each one, but would you go 

down b r i e f l y over E x h i b i t 2A, which contains a summary of 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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your contacts w i t h Harvey E. Yates Company, and describe 

the process you went through t o o b t a i n t h e i r j o i n d e r i n 

t h i s well? 

A. The w e l l was proposed by c e r t i f i e d m a i l on May 

30th, 2001. An AFE was sent f o r t h e i r c o n s i d e r a t i o n and 

execution, along w i t h a copy of our proposed JOA f o r t h e i r 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n and execution. 

I had several telephone c a l l s t o Vernon Dyer and 

also Melissa Randle. A follow-up l e t t e r was sent t o 

Melissa's a t t e n t i o n . I also f u r n i s h e d her copies of the 

s i g n a t u r e pages as executed by Marbob and Tenison. 

I also went t o Roswell t o meet w i t h them, t o 

discuss t h e i r t i t l e . They had questions regarding same. 

They d i d n ' t q u i t e agree w i t h the percentage i n t e r e s t s which 

we had c r e d i t e d them. However, t h i s t i t l e came as a r e s u l t 

of t i t l e examination, which i s based on the records f i l e d 

of record i n Eddy County, New Mexico, and also the records 

i n the State Land O f f i c e . 

Q. Okay, and based on these several l e t t e r s , 

telephone c a l l s and meetings, you have not been able t o 

come t o terms w i t h them a t t h i s time? 

A. No, we have not. 

Q. Now, without — you mentioned, f o r instance, Mr. 

Feldewert entered an appearance f o r Shinnery Investments, 

c o r r e c t ? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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A. Correct. 

Q. They do not show up i n your t i t l e o p i n i o n , do 

they? 

A. No, s i r , they do not. They're not of record. 

Q. Okay. And i s t h a t one of the i n t e r e s t s t h a t 

Heyco, or Harvey E. Yates Company, believes owns an 

i n t e r e s t i n t h e i r lease? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. But they do not show up of record? 

A. They do not show up of record, e i t h e r i n the 

county records or the s t a t e records. 

Q. Okay. Now, without going i n t o d e t a i l on E x h i b i t s 

2B and 2C, d i d you f o l l o w the same general procedure w i t h 

respect t o contacts w i t h Yates Energy Corporation, Cibola 

Energy Corporation and Jalapeno Corporation? 

A. Yes, I have. I o f f e r e d also t o meet w i t h Yates 

Energy Corporation at the same time I was going t o meet 

w i t h Harvey E. Yates Company. However, Shari Hamilton, 

Yates' landman, could not make the meeting due t o some 

other o b l i g a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. Now, t h a t meeting was i n Roswell a t 

Heyco's o f f i c e , was i t not? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. I n your opinion has Mewbourne made a good 

f a i t h e f f o r t t o ob t a i n a v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of the i n t e r e s t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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owners i n the well? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 3 and discuss 

the cost of the proposed well? 

A. E x h i b i t 3 i s our a u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r expenditure 

f o r our proposed Esperanza 15 State Com Number 1 w e l l . I t 

l i s t s dryhole costs of $952,200 and a completed w e l l cost 

of $1,450,500. 

Q. And t h i s i s what, an approximate 11,8 00-foot 

t e s t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t , and t h i s i s simply an 

estimate of w e l l costs. 

Q. Okay. I s t h i s cost i n l i n e w i t h the cost of 

other w e l l s d r i l l e d t o t h i s depth i n t h i s area of Eddy 

County? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does Mewbourne request t h a t i t be designated 

operator of the well? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Do you have a recommendation as t o the amounts 

which should be paid t o Mewbourne f o r sup e r v i s i o n and 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e expenses? 

A. We're requesting $5400 f o r a d r i l l i n g overhead 

and $540 f o r a producing w e l l r a t e . These r a t e s are the 

same as agreed w i t h Marbob Energy Corporation and Tenison 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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O i l Company. 

Q. And are these amounts equivalent t o those or less 

than those normally charged by Mewbourne and other 

operators i n t h i s area f o r w e l l s of t h i s depth? 

A. These ra t e s are normally low. 

Q. Your rates are low? 

A. Yeah, our rates are low. 

Q. Okay. And do you request t h a t these r a t e s be 

adjusted p e r i o d i c a l l y as provided by the COPAS accounting 

procedure? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. And were the nonconsenting p a r t i e s n o t i f i e d of 

t h i s hearing? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. And i s E x h i b i t 4 my a f f i d a v i t of notice? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 1 through 4 prepared by you or 

under your supervision or compiled from company business 

records? 

A. They were. 

Q. And i n your opinion, i s the g r a n t i n g of 

Mewbourne's A p p l i c a t i o n i n the i n t e r e s t s of conservation 

and the prevention of waste? 

A. Absolutely. 

MR. BRUCE: I would tender the admission of 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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Mewbourne E x h i b i t s 1 through 4 i n t o the record. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: 1 through 4 are admitted. 

MR. BRUCE: I f I could, j u s t one f i n a l question, 

j u s t t o c l e a r t h i n g s up a l i t t l e b i t . 

Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Haden, you've gone through 

the n e g o t i a t i o n s you've had. There seems — You've 

requested a farmout from Heyco and those other p a r t i e s ? 

A. Yes, we've — We said we'd make some k i n d of 

tra d e w i t h them. 

Q. I f they d i d n ' t want t o j o i n ? 

A. I f they d i d not want t o j o i n . 

Q. But you haven't been able t o — Could you 

describe the terms of your farmout proposal and what they 

have countered? 

A. Okay, we've suggested t h a t they d e l i v e r us a 

75-percent net revenue i n t e r e s t on the leases w i t h an 

op t i o n t o pay out t o exchange t h e i r r e t a i n e d o v e r r i d i n g 

r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t t o a 25-percent working i n t e r e s t a f t e r 

payout, subject t o p r o p o r t i o n a t e r e d u c t i o n . 

Q. Okay. 

A. They have — This proposal was t o r i g h t s as t o 

below the base of the Yates formation through the base of 

the Morrow formation. However, they o f f e r e d a farmout t o 

us d e l i v e r i n g a 75-percent net revenue i n t e r e s t w i t h an 

op t i o n a f t e r payout t o back i n f o r a o n e - t h i r d working 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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i n t e r e s t , which i s unacceptable economically f o r t h i s 

prospect. 

They also wanted t o d e l i v e r us only r i g h t s below 

the base of the Wolfcamp formation through the Morrow, 

which also i s unacceptable. 

MR. BRUCE: Okay, thank you. With t h a t , I ' d pass 

the witness, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, l e t ' s see, I j u s t wanted 

t o c l a r i f y a couple t h i n g s . 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. The l o c a t i o n you said was twenty-two hundred 

and — Just repeat the footage you said, l e t me be sure I 

have i t . 

A. 2232 f e e t from the south l i n e and 1980 f e e t from 

the east l i n e of Section 15. 

Q. And 198 0 from the east. 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay, and t h i s i s a Morrow t e s t ? 

A. This i s a Morrow t e s t . 

Q. Are there any other formations i n t h a t i n t e r v a l 

you're t a l k i n g about from the base of the Yates t o the base 

of the Morrow — 

A. Yes, they — 

Q. — prospective formations i n there? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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A. Yes, there i s some production i n the area which 

our g e o l o g i s t can r e i t e r a t e . There's also some Delaware 

produc t i o n up t o the northeast, which i s a p o s s i b i l i t y , and 

t h a t would be spaced on 40 acres. There also i s some Bone 

Spring gas production, which I bel i e v e would be spaced on 

160 acres. That production i s i n the west h a l f of Section 

23, a d j o i n i n g 15. 

Also there i s Wolfcamp p o s s i b i l i t i e s . I n f a c t , a 

w e l l i n our spacing u n i t d i d produce Wolfcamp gas, which 

our g e o l o g i s t w i l l t e s t i f y . 

Also the Atoka formation, which would be spaced 

on 320 acres, as would the Wolfcamp formation. I t has a 

very good chance of being productive. 

Q. So you are looking — you are asking f o r a 32 0-

acre as t o the east h a l f and 160 as t o the south — 

A. Southeast quarter. 

Q. — southeast quarter, and 4 0 as t o the northwest 

southeast? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Mr. Stogner? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: No questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, the witness may step down 

— I'm so r r y , I d i d n ' t allow you t o examine here, Mr. 

Feldewert. 

MR. FELDEWERT: I've been s i t t i n g here q u i e t l y . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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EX/AMINER BROOKS: You need t o speak up i f you get 

ignored. 

MR. FELDEWERT: I ' l l do t h a t . I do have a couple 

of questions. 

EX/AMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. Haden, you said there was a JOA f o r t h i s 

p r o p e r t y ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And I want t o j u s t confirm, are the overhead 

r a t e s t h a t you've proposed here today, are they the same 

overhead r a t e s as those i n the JOA f o r the property? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. You haven't made any e f f o r t t o contact — Well, 

l e t me back up. You haven't included i n your n o t i c e 

a f f i d a v i t Shinnery Investments; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's r i g h t , but they're not of record,, which i s 

the reason. 

Q. And i s there a t i t l e opinion t h a t demonstrates 

t h a t they're not of record? 

A. Yes, s i r , we have a t i t l e o p i n i o n , the same t i t l e 

o p i n i o n I fur n i s h e d t o Harvey E. Yates Company — w e l l , a l l 

the poolees — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — they have a copy of the t i t l e o p i n i o n . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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Q. I haven't — I j u s t b r i e f l y glanced a t t h a t t i t l e 

o p i n i o n t h i s morning. Let me see t h a t , Jim. I n o t i c e d 

t h a t Shinnery Investments shows up on page 15, some k i n d of 

a -- note some k i n d of assignment of operating r i g h t s from 

George Yates t o Shinnery Investment Corporation. 

A. Yes, i f you look i n the paragraph (n) — 

Q. Uh-huh. 

A. — t h a t ' s Shinnery t o Coronado. 

Q. Okay. Now, d i d Heyco agree t h a t they were not of 

record when you met w i t h them? 

A. They were s t i l l reviewing t h e i r records, but as 

f a r as I could t e l l they agreed t h a t Shinnery was not of 

record. I t probably — might be i n t h e i r f i l e s . 

Q. I'm s o r r y , what was that? 

A. I n t h e i r f i l e s . 

Q. Okay, so at l e a s t there's some question they may 

or may not have an i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Right. However, i t ' s not of record. 

Q. Are you working w i t h Heyco t o t r y t o get t h a t 

s t r a i g h t e n e d out? 

A. Yes, I am. I n f a c t , I suggested t h a t they get 

together, meaning Harvey E. Yates Company, Shinnery 

Investment Company, also Cibola Energy Corporation, 

Jalapeno Corporation and Yates Energy Corporation, t o a l l 

get together and decide what they t h i n k t h e i r ownership i s 
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and then execute amongst themselves a s t i p u l a t i o n of 

i n t e r e s t and f i l e i t of record. This would be done through 

cross-conveyancing t o each other. 

Q. Okay, and you would a f f o r d them the o p p o r t u n i t y 

f o r Shinnery t o p a r t i c i p a t e or not i n t h i s w e l l , I'm 

assuming, r i g h t ? 

A. Sure, i f they own an i n t e r e s t , they're more than 

welcome. 

Q. Okay. Let me, i f I may approach, I've marked as 

E x h i b i t A and B what I understand t o be correspondence 

between Heyco and y o u r s e l f , between Heyco and Mewbourne, 

concerning t h e i r e f f o r t s t o reach an agreement i n t h i s 

matter. I s t h i s a l l the w r i t t e n communication which has 

taken place concerning a farmout agreement, Mr. Haden? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

Q. I n o t i c e t h a t — Let me ask you f i r s t , t o put 

t h i s i n some perspective, when d i d you f i l e your p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was J u l y 3rd. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l when you f i l e d your — J u l y 3rd i s 

when you proposed your well? 

A. No — 

Q. That's when you — 

A. — May 30th — 

Q. — poo l i n g i t — 
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A. — May 30th i s when we proposed the w e l l . 

Q. May 30th, and then you f i l e d your p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n — 

A. — Jul y 3rd. 

Q. — Jul y 3rd. So t h a t ' s less — That's j u s t a 

l i t t l e over f o u r weeks a f t e r you proposed your well? 

A. Approximately, but i t ' s been nea r l y e i g h t weeks 

since we proposed the w e l l . 

Q. Okay. The f i r s t w r i t t e n c o n f i r m a t i o n I see of 

some k i n d of a farmout i s dated J u l y 2 0th from Yates; i s 

t h a t — or Heyco; i s t h a t r i g h t ? E x h i b i t — I b e l i e v e 

what's marked as E x h i b i t B? 

A. Right. However, when I proposed my w e l l t o them 

May 3 0th, you w i l l note on the l e t t e r , the very bottom 

paragraph, we o f f e r e d t o acquire t h e i r i n t e r e s t by v i r t u e 

of a two-year term assignment wherein they would d e l i v e r us 

an 80-percent net revenue i n t e r e s t f o r a cash c o n s i d e r a t i o n 

of $200 per net acre, which we thought was reasonable. 

Q. Okay, now what are you r e f e r r i n g to? 

A. May 30th, 2001, l e t t e r . 

Q. And t h a t ' s i n which e x h i b i t ? 

MR. BRUCE: E x h i b i t 2A. 

THE WITNESS: E x h i b i t 2A. And t h a t same o f f e r 

was made t o the same — 

MR. BRUCE: The very l a s t page. 
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MR. FELDEWERT: Very l a s t page, okay. 

MR. BRUCE: On E x h i b i t 2A. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Thank you. 

MR. BRUCE: Excuse me. Go ahead, Mr. Haden. 

THE WITNESS: The same o f f e r was made t o the 

other poolees. 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert) Okay. 

A. The two l e t t e r s i n which you are r e f e r r i n g t o are 

also included i n E x h i b i t 2A. 

Q. Oh, they are. Well, t h a t makes i t easy then. 

Okay, and you — and as I understand i t , the only 

d i f f e r e n c e between what Harvey E. Yates Company submitted 

t o you on J u l y the 20th, which i s marked as E x h i b i t B, and 

what you wrote back t o them on Jul y the 2 4th, which i s 

marked as E x h i b i t A, i s the working i n t e r e s t percentage and 

then the formations t h a t are t o be farmed out; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . Also any farmout agreement t h a t 

the send us t h a t would obviously be subject t o our 

acceptance as t o the terms o f f e r e d . 

Q. You said Heyco's — I t h i n k your words were, 

Heyco's proposal was unacceptable — 

A. Unacceptable. 

Q. — economically? 

A. Economically. 
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Q. And why i s that? 

A. This i s a r i s k y area, of which our g e o l o g i s t Mike 

Burke w i l l go i n t o . A t h i r d back-in proposal i s not 

i n d u s t r y standard. A quarter back-in a t payout i s p r e t t y 

much i n d u s t r y standard and i s acceptable. I f they do not 

want t o j o i n us i n the w e l l , then they can farm out t o us 

under those terms. 

Q. So i t ' s your testimony a o n e - t h i r d back-in i s not 

i n d u s t r y standard? 

A. That's what I'm t e s t i f y i n g . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I n our opinion. 

Q. And i s t h a t — So i s t h a t k i n d of a t a k e - i t - o r -

l e a v e - i t o f f e r a t t h i s p o i n t , what you've put t h e r e on J u l y 

24th? 

A. I ' d be w i l l i n g t o l i s t e n t o anything they have t o 

say, but I t h i n k we could not accept a t h i r d back-in a t 

payout, no. They could do three t h i n g s : farm out on the 

terms we o f f e r , we could acquire t h e i r i n t e r e s t o u t r i g h t 

f o r a cash c o n s i d e r a t i o n , or we could acquire t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t through a term assignment wherein they keep an 

o v e r r i d e and we pay them some cash f o r a two-year term 

assignment, or they could j o i n , take the r i s k w i t h us. 

Q. Did you o f f e r any farmout terms t o them, other 

than the very b r i e f d e s c r i p t i o n i n your May 3 0th l e t t e r and 
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what you've put i n your July 24th l e t t e r ? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. Was there any — 

A. However, I d i d discuss w i t h Harvey E. Yates 

Company a t our meeting — Melissa Randle i n d i c a t e d t h a t 

they would be agreeable t o farming out on the terms 

contained i n Heyco 1s l e t t e r dated J u l y 2 0th. I t o l d her a t 

t h a t time those were not acceptable. 

Q. And when was t h a t meeting? 

A. J u l y 19th. 

Q. J u l y 19th. 

A. I advised her those terms were not acceptable. 

Q. Okay. Was there any discussion about a farmout 

between May 3 0th when you proposed the w e l l and the meeting 

on J u l y 19th? 

A. Not f o r m a l l y . 

Q. I n f o r m a l l y ? 

A. Over the telephone. 

Q. Was there — Okay. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. A l l r i g h t , now we've t a l k e d about Heyco. 

I wanted t o focus a l i t t l e b i t now on Jalapeno. 

A. Okay. 

Q. You proposed your w e l l t o them on May 3 0 t h ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 
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A. Same date, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And then four weeks l a t e r on J u l y the 3rd, you 

f i l e d your poo l i n g Application? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I don't see any discussion here about — w e l l , 

when was your f i r s t — Did you discuss t h i s matter w i t h 

Jalapeno at a l l before f i l i n g your p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n on 

Ju l y the 3rd? 

A. What matter are you t a l k i n g about? The p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

Q. Yes, yeah. 

A. Yes, I t o l d them t h a t we were going t o be f i l i n g 

the p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n , because we — t h i s i s due t o r i g 

scheduling. We intend t o d r i l l t h i s w e l l on or about 

September 1. 

Q. Now, when d i d you — I mean, I'm l o o k i n g a t your 

chronology here which you've marked as E x h i b i t 2C, and I 

don't see any communications w i t h Jalapeno between the time 

t h a t you f i l e d your — or made your w e l l proposal on May 

the 3 0th and the date on which you f i l e d your p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n , J u l y the 3rd. 

A. Well, you can see June 19th there was a follow-up 

l e t t e r . 

Q. To whom? 

A. Cibola and Jalapeno Corporation. Also a f o l l o w -
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up l e t t e r dated J u l y 11th. I also had a conversation w i t h 

Richard Williams, the landman f o r Cibola and Jalapeno, on 

J u l y 11th. He advised me t h a t Harvey E. Yates, J r . , would 

be out of town f o r q u i t e some time and t h e r e f o r e could not 

make any k i n d of agreement. 

I also sent them a copy of our t i t l e o p i n i o n f o r 

t h e i r i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. Okay, now I'm going t o focus on the p e r i o d 

between the time you f i l e d your p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n , okay, 

and the time you proposed your w e l l . So the p e r i o d between 

May 30th and Ju l y the 3rd, okay? You've got a June 19th 

l e t t e r t o Mr. Yates; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. That's the only communication t h a t I see. Am I 

missing anything? 

A. May 3 0th and June 19th. 

Q. That was i t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. No telephone c a l l s 

A. Yes, I d i d n ' t put an e x h i b i t — Yes, I d i d c a l l . 

I got an answering machine. 

Q. Who d i d you c a l l ? 

A. Harvey E. Yates, J r . 

Q. Okay, d i d you c a l l — Did you understand t h a t t o 

be your contact person f o r Jalapeno? 
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A. No, a t a l a t e r date Richard Williams c a l l e d and 

sa i d , I'm now landman f o r Harvey E. Yates, J r . I've d e a l t 

w i t h Cibola and Jalapeno Corporation i n the past, and I 

know Harvey E. Yates, J r . , i s the owner of those companies. 

Q. Okay, so i t ' s your testimony t h a t between the 

time you proposed your w e l l on May 3 0th and J u l y the 3rd, 

you c a l l e d a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of Jalapeno — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — and l e f t a telephone message? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. What message d i d you leave? 

A. Making c e r t a i n t h a t they d i d recei v e a w e l l 

proposal, which I d i d send by v i r t u e of c e r t i f i e d m a i l . We 

got t h e i r green card back, so t h a t confirms t h a t they d i d . 

I also a t a l a t e r date, on or about J u l y — l e t me see. 

Q. Now, remember, I want t o stay w i t h i n the p e r i o d 

of time between the time you f i l e d or proposed your — 

A. Okay, what's your point? 

Q. I'm j u s t asking you, what was the — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — message t h a t you l e f t ? 

A. Just t o r e i t e r a t e t h a t we'd l i k e t o make a tra d e 

w i t h them i f they d i d n ' t want t o j o i n . They too are 

concerned about t h e i r i n t e r e s t . They're not r e a l sure of 

what they own. This a l l comes back t o the Harvey E. Yates 
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Company's i n t e r e s t by conveyances previous. 

Q. Are you aware of any issue w i t h Jalapeno 

concerning t h e i r percentage i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Cibola and Jalapeno are not c e r t a i n what e x a c t l y 

i n t e r e s t s they have. However, we sent them a copy of our 

t i t l e o p i n i o n s e t t i n g f o r t h t h e i r i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Okay, so you're attempting t o resolve t h a t issue? 

A. Yes, I've suggested, as I d i d w i t h Harvey E. 

Yates Company, t h a t they a l l need t o get together and 

execute a s t i p u l a t i o n of i n t e r e s t . That way i t would c l e a r 

i t up once and f o r a l l . 

Q. Your chronology i n d i c a t e s here t h a t you sent out 

a r e v i s e d AFE. I s t h a t the AFE t h a t ' s been marked as your 

E x h i b i t Number 3? 

A. Yes. The previous AFE was a l i t t l e b i t more 

money, $1,640,300 completed. This i s due t o the change i n 

d r i l l i n g r i g r a t e s , day r a t e s . 

Q. The day rates went down? 

A. Yeah, from then t o now, yes, they d i d . And they 

probably w i l l again. 

Q. Now, you've included some costs here t h a t I 

b e l i e v e you would be able t o recover i n the event of a dry 

hole, i s there not? I mean, I'm lo o k i n g down here a t your 

t a n g i b l e costs. You've included $8500 and $36,500 f o r 

surface casing and intermediate casing. Would you be able 
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t o recover those costs, recover t h a t casing back, i n the 

event you d r i l l e d a dry hole? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay, I'm not an engineer, so you've — 

A. I'm not e i t h e r . 

Q. — got t o help me here, okay? 

A. I t ' s my understanding t h a t we would not. 

Q. Okay. Now what about down there where you're 

d e a l i n g w i t h — you have separation equipment l i s t e d 

t h e r e — 

A. I n the t a n g i b l e cost. 

Q. — i n tanks and s t e e l , 890, 891, 894, see t h a t ? 

A. Okay, yeah. 

Q. Now, i s n ' t t h a t equipment t h a t you wouldn't lose 

i n the event you d r i l l e d a dry hole? I mean, you'd be able 

t o get t h a t equipment back, correct? 

A. Well, t h a t equipment would not come i n t o p l a y 

u n t i l you completed your w e l l . 

Q. Okay, but i t ' s not r e a l l y a t r i s k , i s i t ? 

A. The $952,200 worth of equipment i s a t r i s k . 

Q. Okay. That's your dry hole? 

A. That's the dryhole cost, estimated. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I t could be s i g n i f i c a n t l y more than t h a t , 

depending on mechanical d i f f i c u l t i e s w h i l e d r i l l i n g the 
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w e l l , or i t could be less. 

Q. Let's go t o the i n t a n g i b l e s . I n the e n t r y 3 50, 

what i s the " I n t a n g i b l e Supplies", $48,800? 

A. I t appears t o be d r i l l i n g b i t s , cost of d r i l l i n g 

b i t s . 

Q. Who prepared t h i s AFE? 

A. At the bottom i t l i s t s "T. Burke/N.M. Young". 

Terry Burke i s our d r i l l i n g engineer, N.M. Young i s our 

d i s t r i c t manager i n Hobbs, New Mexico. M. Whetstoe t h a t ' s 

signed there i s our v i c e president of operations. He's i n 

T y l e r . 

Q. And has Mewbourne d r i l l e d other — I s t h i s a 

Morrow well? 

A. This i s a Morrow w e l l . 

Q. Have you d r i l l e d other Morrow w e l l s i n t h i s area? 

A. Yes, I have. Or we have, excuse me. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I n the west h a l f of Section 28, same township and 

range. 

Q. Were these i n d i v i d u a l s t h a t prepared t h i s AFE, 

were they involved i n the d r i l l i n g of those wells? 

A. Yes, s i r , they were. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I'm curious, there's an e n t r y t h e r e 

f o r 32 0, i t says "Transportation". Do you know what t h a t ' s 

f o r ? 
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A. That includes the cost of moving the d r i l l i n g r i g 

t o and from l o c a t i o n . 

Q. So t h a t ' s — Okay, t h a t ' s an a d d i t i o n a l cost, 

t h a t ' s i n a d d i t i o n t o your day rates? 

A. Right. I t ' s a cost r e q u i r e d by the d r i l l i n g 

c o n t r a c t o r . 

Q. Could you i d e n t i f y f o r me whether Mewbourne would 

be w i l l i n g t o consider any farmout terms other than those 

t h a t you set f o r t h i n your July 24th l e t t e r , or are you set 

t h a t you have t o have them o n e - t h i r d , t h a t you can only 

give up a 25-percent working i n t e r e s t ? 

A. I t h i n k 25 percent i s f a i r . 

Q. Based on what? 

A. Economics and what's acceptable w i t h i n t he 

i n d u s t r y . 

Q. Okay, thank you. 

A. You bet. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Did you have any f u r t h e r 

f o l l o w - u p , Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: I had j u s t a few follow-up questions 

f o r Mr. Haden. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Mr. Haden, w i t h respect t o Cibola Energy 

Corporation or Jalapeno Corporation, t o the best of your 
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knowledge i s Harvey E. Yates, J r . , the owner of those 

companies? 

A. He i s the owner. 

Q. So I mean, he c o n t r o l s them, he'd be the one t o 

contact, wouldn't he? 

A. Yes, and he's unavailable. 

Q. And you sent your proposal l e t t e r on May 3 0th. 

You never heard back from him, d i d you? 

A. No. 

Q. You never got a c o u n t e r - o f f e r on a term 

assignment, you never got a --

A. No. 

Q. — farmout proposal? 

A. No, he never returned my phone c a l l s and 

c e r t a i n l y d i d not send any l e t t e r s t o me. 

Q. Okay, and so n e i t h e r — a t l e a s t from Cibola and 

Jalapeno, the contacts were somewhat l i m i t e d j u s t because 

they never c a l l e d you e i t h e r ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . Again, we would make a t r a d e 

w i t h them, j u s t l i k e we've o f f e r e d w i t h the other poolees. 

Q. Okay. And you've given a l l these p a r t i e s your 

t i t l e o p i n i o n , have you not? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And you haven't had — t o the best of your 

knowledge, they haven't challenged what's i n t h a t t i t l e 
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o p i n i o n , have they? 

A. No, they have not. 

Q. I mean, they haven't come back t o you and sa i d 

i t ' s wrong because of A, B or C? 

A. They have not. 

MR. BRUCE: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l I have, Mr. 

Examiner. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Okay. On E x h i b i t 4, your a f f i d a v i t — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — I don't see anything w i t h regard t o Jalapeno 

i n t h e r e . 

A. E x h i b i t — Cibola Energy — Jalapeno 

Corporation — 

Q. Oh, okay — 

A. — i s named — 

Q. — yeah. 

A. — r i g h t below Cibola. 

Q. I see i t , i t ' s the same — 

A. Right, they're the same address. 

Q. They have the same m a i l i n g address? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Yeah, I see they're i n the r e t u r n r e c e i p t . Now, 

who was the company t h a t had the t i t l e t h a t claimed they 
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had an i n t e r e s t i n — 

A. This i s Shinnery Investments Company. They 

apparently are a subs i d i a r y of Harvey E. Yates Company. 

Q. You d i d not give them any notice? 

A. There was no need t o , they own no i n t e r e s t of 

record. 

Q. Okay, but you had been n o t i f i e d by someone t h a t 

they claimed t o own an i n t e r e s t ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. A landman w i t h Harvey E. Yates Company, Melissa 

Randle, she thought t h a t they — Shinnery owned an 

i n t e r e s t , but she has not been able t o prove t h a t t o me. 

Q. A l l these other companies, Harvey E. Yates and 

Cibola and Jalapeno, are a f f i l i a t e d . I s Shinnery 

a f f i l i a t e d w i t h t h a t group e i t h e r , or are they somebody 

else? 

A. Well, I t h i n k they're a f f i l i a t e d only w i t h Harvey 

E. Yates Company. Now, a number of years ago Harvey E. 

Yates, J r . , was p a r t of, as I understand, Harvey E. Yates 

Company. However, they s p l i t o f f and he s t a r t e d doing h i s 

own t h i n g . 

Q. Yeah, okay. To c l a r i f y some of the t h i n g s t h a t 

Mr. Feldewert asked about, w i t h Harvey E. Yates Company, 

du r i n g the per i o d of time t h a t you proposed t h i s farmout 

w i t h a back-in, w i t h a 25-percent back-in, when was t h a t 

proposed? Was t h a t proposed p r i o r t o the J u l y 20, or was 
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t h a t the J u l y — 

A. That was Jul y 24th, when I proposed t h a t t o them 

f o r m a l l y . However, at my meeting J u l y 19th I suggested t o 

her t h a t we would be agreeable t o those terms i n l i e u of 

her proposal of a t h i r d back-in a t payout and r i g h t s below 

the base of the Wolfcamp formation. 

Q. Okay, but t h a t d i d n ' t come up u n t i l a f t e r the 

f i l i n g — J u l y 3rd — 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. — when you f i l e d the proceeding. Now, do I 

c o r r e c t l y understand t h a t farmout was never a c t u a l l y 

discussed w i t h anybody, e i t h e r w i t h Cibola or Jalapeno? 

A. I beli e v e I discussed same w i t h Richard Williams 

j u s t over the phone, saying, Hey, you want t o j o i n , w e ' l l 

acquire your i n t e r e s t through farmout or term assignment. 

Q. Okay, and what time-frame was th a t ? 

A. I'm est i m a t i n g t h a t was before and a f t e r the 

po o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d . I t would — Excuse me, i t 

would be a f t e r the A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d , i t would be J u l y 

11th, i s when I had these discussions w i t h Richard 

Will i a m s . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Did you want t o — Have 

you tendered E x h i b i t s A and B? I don't r e c a l l . 

MR. FELDEWERT: No, I have not, and I should. I 

would tender the i n t r o d u c t i o n of E x h i b i t s A and B. 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, Harvey E. Yates Company's 

E x h i b i t s A and B w i l l be admitted. 

Mr. Stogner, d i d you have some questions? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: No other questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good, the witness may 

stand down. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, one t h i n g . I f you 

would l i k e a copy of the t i t l e o pinion I have one here. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Are you going t o tender i t i n 

evidence? 

MR. BRUCE: I could i f — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I t h i n k i t should e i t h e r be i n 

evidence — Since i t ' s evidence of t i t l e , I t h i n k i t should 

e i t h e r be i n evidence, or else I should not consider i t . 

MR. BRUCE: Well then, I — Mr. Examiner, I 

tender you what 1s been marked Mewbourne E x h i b i t 8, which i s 

a copy of the t i t l e o p inion prepared by the Hin k l e law f i r m 

on behalf of Mewbourne O i l Company. I have shown t h a t t o 

Mr. Feldewert. 

I s t h a t , Mr. Haden, the t i t l e o p i n i o n t h a t was 

prepared a t your request? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I would tender t h a t 

o p i n i o n as E x h i b i t — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any o b j e c t i o n , Mr. Feldewert? 
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MR. FELDEWERT: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EX/AMINER BROOKS: E x h i b i t 8 w i l l be admitted. 

The witness may stand down. 

C a l l your next witness. 

MR. BRUCE: C a l l Mr. Burke t o the stand. 

MIKE BURKE, 

the witness herein, a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the 

record? 

A. Steven Michael Burke. 

Q. Where do you reside? 

A. Midland, Texas. 

Q. Who do you work f o r and i n what capacity? 

A. I'm a petroleum g e o l o g i s t w i t h Mewbourne O i l 

Company. 

Q. Have you pr e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

Di v i s i o n ? 

A. No, s i r , I have not. 

Q. Would you please summarize your educational and 

employment background f o r the Examiner? 

A. I've been a p r a c t i c i n g petroleum g e o l o g i s t f o r 

approximately 20 years now. I graduated i n 1980 from 
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Stephen F. Aus t i n State U n i v e r s i t y w i t h a B.S. i n geology. 

Since February of t h i s year I've worked f o r 

Mewbourne O i l Company as a petroleum g e o l o g i s t , working i n 

the New Mexico area. P r i o r t o t h a t I spent 13 years w i t h 

El Paso Production Company working as a petroleum g e o l o g i s t 

i n the southwestern p a r t of the United States. 

Q. Have you q u a l i f i e d as an expert witness i n any 

other j u r i s d i c t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, I've t e s t i f i e d on numerous occasions before 

the Louisiana Department of Conservation as w e l l as the 

Texas Rai l r o a d Commission as an expert petroleum g e o l o g i s t 

witness. 

Q. Does your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y a t Mewbourne 

include southeast New Mexico? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the geologic matters 

involved i n t h i s A p p l ication? 

A. Yes, s i r , I am. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender Mr. Burke as 

an expert petroleum g e o l o g i s t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: His q u a l i f i c a t i o n s w i l l be — 

I'm s o r r y , are there any objections? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: His q u a l i f i c a t i o n s w i l l be 

accepted. 
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Q. (By Mr. Bruce) What i s the primary zone of 

i n t e r e s t f o r t h i s w e l l , Mr. Burke? 

A. Our primary o b j e c t i v e i s the Morrow form a t i o n . 

W i t h i n the Morrow there are two even higher regarded 

o b j e c t i v e s i n the middle and the lower Morrow, the middle 

Morrow blue sand and the lower Morrow orange sand, which 

I ' l l discuss f u r t h e r i n some other e x h i b i t s . 

Q. Okay. Would you i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 5 and discuss 

i t f o r the Examiner? 

A. Yes, E x h i b i t Number 5 i s a s t r u c t u r e map t h a t I 

prepared a t the top of the lower Morrow formation. I f 

y o u ' l l look a t the key i n the bottom l e f t - h a n d corner of 

the map y o u ' l l see t h a t the gas symbols are w e l l s t h a t are 

deeper than 11,000 f e e t , which were s u f f i c i e n t t o penetrate 

the Morrow formation. I f they have a c i r c l e around the gas 

symbol, i t i n d i c a t e s t h a t they produced from the Morrow 

formation. 

Also depicted on the map, posted around the w e l l s 

j u s t t o the l e f t , i s the cumulative production of the w e l l s 

through the f i r s t of t h i s year, approximately, i n MMCFE's. 

So f o r example, the w e l l i n the middle of the map, t h a t ' s A 

on the cross-section, you see a 2639 MMCFE, so i t ' s made 

2.6 BCF of gas. 

Also posted around the w e l l i s the c u r r e n t s t a t u s 

and operator of the w e l l , as w e l l as which f o r m a t i o n i t ' s 
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i n . The w e l l I j u s t spoke about I say i s i n a c t i v e , so i t ' s 

been plugged and abandoned. The other w e l l s y o u ' l l see the 

operator and next t o them the name of the f o r m a t i o n , and 

then maybe below t h a t i f they're s t i l l a c t i v e , the average 

12-month production f o r the w e l l i n the previous year i n , 

again, MCF of gas. 

Also depicted on the map y o u ' l l see the e x i s t i n g 

pooled u n i t s f o r the Morrow formation o u t l i n e d i n red, as 

w e l l as i n the middle of the map, o u t l i n e d i n blue, i s our 

proposed pool u n i t . 

Q. Now, looking a t t h i s map, Mr. Burke, you know, 

t h i s i s a s t r u c t u r e map. Sometimes s t r u c t u r e i s n ' t too 

important i n the Morrow. I s i t important i n t h i s area? 

A. I n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area i t i s , yes. The Morrow 

i n t h i s area, i n the area of our l o c a t i o n , dips back t o the 

east. There's an a n t i c l i n e running along the middle of 

t h i s map. I n the very northwest p a r t of the map i t dips 

back t o the west. As you f a l l low on s t r u c t u r e on e i t h e r 

side of t h i s a n t i c l i n a l f e a t u r e , the lower Morrow begins t o 

produce water and not gas. So the s t r u c t u r a l p o s i t i o n f o r 

the lower Morrow o b j e c t i v e i s important. 

Q. Okay. And i s t h a t r e f l e c t e d i n the Morrow 

produc t i o n t o the east of your proposed well? 

A. Yes, as you — i f you w i l l look a t the production 

from the w e l l s back t o the east and downdip, y o u ' l l see the 
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cumulative production numbers are much smaller i n general 

than the w e l l s back on the l e f t and t o the west and updip. 

Q. And of course t h a t adds t o the r i s k i n v o l v e d i n 

d r i l l i n g your well? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Why don't you move on t o your E x h i b i t 6A and 6B 

and discuss the primary zones t h a t you — 

A. Both of these e x h i b i t s are net sand isopachs of 

our two key zones t h a t we're going a f t e r . T h e y ' l l also be 

depicted on the next e x h i b i t , which i s a cr o s s - s e c t i o n , so 

you can look a t them. And what I'm t r y i n g t o demonstrate 

here i s t h a t the area i s reasonably u n d e r l a i n by these 

formations w i t h pay i n them. We f e e l l i k e t h a t w e ' l l 

encounter both of these formations. 

I f y o u ' l l look at the a c t u a l w e l l symbols on the 

map and look a t the key and compare i t , the numbers posted 

above the w e l l s are the net sand and the gross sand values, 

the net on top and the gross on bottom. I f the w e l l i s 

c i r c l e d again w i t h a red c i r c l e , i t produced out of t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r zone. 

Now, the production f i g u r e s are the same as on 

the previous map. They don't attempt t o break out one zone 

produced so much and one zone produced another amount. 

That's undeterminable, because these zones are commingled 

and p a r t of the Burton F l a t Morrow f i e l d . 
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Q. Okay, why don't you move on t o your cross-

s e c t i o n , E x h i b i t 7, and discuss these zones t h a t you are... 

A. Okay. Of course, t h i s c ross-section i s e x h i b i t e d 

on the maps, and again here i t i s on a key map, on the 

rig h t - h a n d side of the map. 

The w e l l on the right-hand side of the map i s a 

w e l l t h a t was d r i l l e d — and i t ' s depicted as A' — i s a 

w e l l t h a t was d r i l l e d by Humble O i l and R e f i n i n g back i n 

19 62. Posted below i t I say the Morrow t e s t e d 

noncommercial. I have more d e t a i l on the t e s t i n g of i t . 

They t e s t e d a high water cut i n the lower Morrow and then 

based on l o g analysis performed no t e s t i n g i n the middle 

Morrow because they thought i t was t i g h t . And they 

subsequently completed the w e l l up the hole i n the Wolfcamp 

format i o n , as they f e l t t h a t the Morrow was noncommercial. 

As you move t o the l e f t on the c r o s s - s e c t i o n , 

through our proposed l o c a t i o n , which — moving i n an updip 

p o s i t i o n t o the o l d Humble w e l l , we f e e l l i k e by moving 

updip w e ' l l have a chance of lowering the water cut from 

the lower Morrow formation, and we're approximately on 

s t r i k e w i t h a w e l l t h a t was d r i l l e d by the Harvey E. Yates 

Company i n 1975 and completed i n the Morrow. 

The p e r f o r a t i o n s are i n the depth t r a c k , and you 

can see from the top of the logs t o the bottom there's a 

middle Morrow orange zone t h a t was p e r f o r a t e d , and lower on 
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the l o g i s a middle Morrow blue t h a t was p e r f o r a t e d , and 

then down i n the lower Morrow there's an orange sand. And 

based on our g e o l o g i c a l and engineering i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , we 

f e e l l i k e t here w i l l be d e p l e t i o n i n these zones but t h a t 

s u f f i c i e n t gas w i l l e x i s t t h a t we can make a commercial 

producer a t t h i s l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Okay, i n looking at t h i s map, i n s e l e c t i n g the 

w e l l l o c a t i o n from a geologic standpoint, you obviously 

wanted t o move away from the Morrow dry hole over i n the 

northeast of the southeast quarter, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And t h a t w e l l , even though i t ' s on your cross-

s e c t i o n , i s producing about — less than h a l f a BCF of gas. 

t h a t was not from the Morrow, was i t ? 

A. No, i t was not. This w e l l never produced from 

the Morrow formation. 

Q. Okay, so t h a t production on there i s from the 

Wolfcamp; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And then you wanted t o stay away from the 

successful w e l l over i n the northeast quarter i n order t o 

minimize d e p l e t i o n t h a t may a f f e c t your w e l l ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Are there secondary o b j e c t i v e s i n your proposed 
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well? 

A. Yes, s i r , there are. There are a number of 

formations shallow t o the Morrow t h a t produced: the Atoka, 

the Strawn, Pennsylvanian, the Wolfcamp, the Bone Springs 

and the Delaware. 

Again, i f y o u ' l l look around the w e l l s on the key 

map you can see some of the o f f s e t t i n g w e l l s , because I 

have the formations t h a t they're c u r r e n t l y i n . I f you look 

j u s t t o the northwest — or northeast of our proposed w e l l , 

there's a w e l l i n the northwest p a r t of Section 14, i t says 

"Concho Resources" and "Atoka", and i t ' s c u r r e n t l y 

producing out of the Atoka. So we f e e l l i k e t h e r e are 

secondary o b j e c t i v e zones. 

Q. I n d r i l l i n g these deep w e l l s , these deep Morrow 

t e s t s , i s i t important t o have secondary zones which could 

be p r o d u c t i v e t o help cost recovery and perhaps minimize 

r i s k ? 

A. Yes, i t i s , because our an a l y s i s of the area 

i n d i c a t e s there's s i g n i f i c a n t r i s k of d e p l e t i o n , t h e r e has 

been some very large cumulative production from the Morrow 

formation i n t h i s area, and i t ' s j u s t — the d e p l e t i o n i s 

something t h a t r e a l l y cannot be determined u n t i l the w e l l 

i s d r i l l e d and pressures are measured. 

Q. Okay. I n your opinion, what penalty should be 

assessed against any i n t e r e s t owner who goes nonconsent? 
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A. The 200-percent penalty. 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 5 through 7 prepared by you or 

under your supervision? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. And i n your opinion i s the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation and the 

prevent i o n of waste? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I' d tender the 

admission of Mewbourne E x h i b i t s 5 through 7. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any objection? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mewbourne's 5 through 7 are 

admitted. 

Mr. Feldewert? 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. Burke, I j u s t have a couple questions. Your 

Morrow w e l l s on here, then, are shown w i t h red spacing 

u n i t s ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Those are the c u r r e n t l y a c t i v e Morrow-pooled 

u n i t s , the red o u t l i n e s . 

Q. Okay. 

A. That's what they are. There have been other 

Morrow-pooled u n i t s , but they're i n a c t i v e a t the present 
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time, and I d i d not d e p i c t those. 

Q. What does the red c i r c l e around the w e l l s mean? 

A. That means the w e l l produced from the Morrow 

formation. 

Q. Okay, so t h a t w e l l i n the northwest q u a r t e r of 

Section 14 produced from Morrow formation, and they moved 

up t o the Atoka? 

A. Right, and i f you even look t o the l e f t of i t , i t 

made 663 MMCFE from the Morrow formation. 

Q. 636? 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay. Would you consider t h a t commercial? 

A. Ma r g i n a l l y . 

Q. M a r g i n a l l y commercial? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. I understand, then, t h a t you would 

consider the w e l l i n the north h a l f of Section 22 t o be 

commercial. That's a p r e t t y good w e l l , r i g h t ? 

A. Oh, yes, c e r t a i n l y . 

Q. Okay, and the w e l l i n the west h a l f of Section 

15, t h a t ' s — 

A. C e r t a i n l y . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And the w e l l i n the south h a l f of 

Section 10, t h a t ' s a good w e l l ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. C e r t a i n l y . 
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Q. Okay. And you i n d i c a t e d t h a t you have not only 

secondary o b j e c t i v e s , but you've got p o t e n t i a l l y t h i r d , 

f o u r t h , f i f t h — I mean, I t h i n k you i n d i c a t e d the Atoka, 

Strawn, Pennsylvanian and Delaware? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s there any r i s k of d e p l e t i o n i n any of those 

secondary — 

A. Yes, there i s r i s k of d e p l e t i o n i n those zones. 

I have not studied i t w i t h the i n t e n s i t y t h a t I've st u d i e d 

the Morrow and cannot speak t o i t as s t r o n g l y , but 

c e r t a i n l y anytime you have nearby production there's a 

chance of d e p l e t i o n . 

Q. Okay, but your testimony about a r i s k of 

d e p l e t i o n today only applies t o the Morrow f o r m a t i o n ; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. P r i m a r i l y , yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay, you can't t e s t i f y today t h a t there's any 

r i s k of d e p l e t i o n i n the Atoka; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I'm not prepared t o answer t h a t . 

Q. Or the Strawn? 

A. No, I'm not prepared t o answer t h a t . 

Q. Or the Pennsylvanian? 

A. No. 

Q. Or the Delaware? 

A. No. 
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Q. A l l of which are p o t e n t i a l t a r g e t s f o r your well? 

A. Yes. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Okay, are there other w e l l s — I d i d n ' t f o l l o w 

e x a c t l y what you said about which w e l l s were i n what 

formations. There are other w e l l s t h a t are shown on t h i s 

map t h a t are i n other formations, completed i n other 

formations, other than the Morrow? 

A. Yes, s i r . Yes, s i r . This i s a mu l t i p l e - p a y 

area, so some of these w e l l s have been completed and 

recompleted two or three times. 

Q. Yeah, and you said you d i d n ' t break down the 

production f i g u r e s ? 

A. For the other zones, no, s i r . I simply depicted 

on here — i f the w e l l i s c u r r e n t l y producing i n a zone 

other than the Morrow, I have i n d i c a t e d t h a t below the w e l l 

w i t h the c u r r e n t operator, j u s t as a reference t h a t t h e r e 

are nearby w e l l s i n formations other than the Morrow. 

I f you look i n the — as I pointed out, the w e l l 

i n the northwest p a r t of 14 t h a t we j u s t spoke o f , below i t 

i t says "Concho Resources", and then there's a slash and i t 

says "Atoka". Well, t h a t w e l l i s c u r r e n t l y operated by 

Concho and producing from the Atoka formation. 
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Q. Not c u r r e n t l y producing from the Morrow, r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , but i t had produced from the 

Morrow i n the past because i t has t h a t red c i r c l e around 

the gas-well symbol. 

Q. Okay, i s t h a t 63 6 MCF, was t h a t Morrow produ c t i o n 

only or — 

A. That was only Morrow production, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

I only have Morrow production on these maps. 

Q. Okay. Then t h a t w e l l i n the — Now, the w e l l i n 

the n o r t h h a l f of 2 2 i s a p r e t t y good Morrow w e l l , r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . And t h a t w e l l , f o r example, j u s t 

so y o u ' l l understand, i t ' s made over 5 BCF from the Morrow. 

I t ' s c u r r e n t l y operated by Bass. I n the l a s t year i t 

averaged 110 MCF per day, and i t ' s never — and i t ' s 

c u r r e n t l y s t i l l i n i t s o r i g i n a l completion i n the Morrow. 

I t ' s never been recompleted. There may be zones behind 

pipe t h a t I'm not sure about, you know, l i k e Atoka or 

Strawn or whatever, but i t ' s c u r r e n t l y s t i l l i n the Morrow. 

Q. And then the w e l l i n the west h a l f of 20, looks 

l i k e t h a t ' s not c u r r e n t l y producing from the Morrow again; 

i s t h a t correct? 

A. I n the west h a l f — I'm s o r r y , the west h a l f of 

15? I saw t h a t 2 0 up above i t and I was — 

A. I n the west h a l f of 15, r i g h t , the w e l l t h a t ' s 

j u s t t o the east of our proposed l o c a t i o n never produced 
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from the Morrow. I t was the one on the cr o s s - s e c t i o n t h a t 

produced from the Wolfcamp and t e s t e d noncommercial from 

the Morrow back i n 1962, and the w e l l t o the n o r t h of our 

proposed l o c a t i o n i n the west h a l f — i n the east h a l f of 

15 produced from the Morrow, i s c u r r e n t l y i n a c t i v e and has 

been plugged, made 2.6 BCF. 

Did I answer t h a t r i g h t , d i d I answer — 

Q. The one t h a t i s i n the northeast q u a r t e r of 15 — 

A. Right. 

Q. — t h a t ' s the one you were j u s t t a l k i n g about? 

A. Right. 

Q. That's not c u r r e n t l y producing from the Morrow, 

but i t has produced s i g n i f i c a n t production from the Morrow? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t has. 

Q. Now, the one I was asking about was the w e l l i n 

the west h a l f of Section 20 — 

A. The west — 

Q. — I mean Section 15. 

A. Okay, the west h a l f of Section 15, yes, t h a t i s 

c u r r e n t l y producing from the Morrow. I t ' s producing — 

operated by Bass Enterprises, producing from the Morrow. 

Last — I n the year of 2 000 i t averaged about 160 MCF per 

month from the Morrow formation, and i t has made 3971 MMCF 

or 3.9 BCF of gas from the Morrow. 

Q. Okay, t h i s w e l l down i n the west h a l f of Section 
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2 3 t h a t ' s t o the southeast of your proposed l o c a t i o n — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — a f a i r l y long way o f f , was t h a t one d r i l l e d t o 

the Morrow? 

A. I t was d r i l l e d t o the Morrow, and I don't have 

the d e t a i l s on i t . I t was never completed i n the Morrow. 

I'm f a i r l y sure they considered i t noncommercial t h e r e i n 

t h a t downdip p o s i t i o n . They recompleted the — They 

completed the w e l l shallow. I t ' s c u r r e n t l y operated by Ray 

Westall and producing from the Bone Springs f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. And then going up t o the northeast, of 

course we've t a l k e d about the one i n 14, and the one i n the 

southeast of 11 again looks l i k e i t was a very small Morrow 

producer? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t was a very marginal producer, and 

i t ' s c u r r e n t l y i n a c t i v e i n a l l zones. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I t h i n k t h i s as w e l l as a 

lawyer i s capable of understanding i t . 

Mr. Stogner, d i d you have any questions? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. The two w e l l s t h a t are c u r r e n t l y i n the east 

h a l f , as shown on E x h i b i t Number 7, those two w e l l s were 
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P-and-A'd i n 1984, correct? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. Now, when r e f e r r i n g t o E x h i b i t Number 1, 

t h i s was the copy of the Midland Map — I know i t was 

presented by your previous witness — i f I zero i n on the 

east h a l f , and according t o your testimony t h e r e are some 

other w e l l s i n the area t h a t ' s producing from shallower 

horizons, and i t appears t o me there are f o u r other 

wellbores w i t h i n t h i s same quarter quarter s e c t i o n , being 

the northwest of the southeast; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Are any of those s t i l l producing or a c t i v e , or 

are they a l l plugged and abandoned? 

A. I do not know. Those, t o my knowledge, are 

shallow Yates w e l l s . I don't believe we have the r i g h t s t o 

t h a t formation as a p a r t of t h i s , and I'm j u s t not sure 

what the s t a t u s of those w e l l s are. 

Q. Okay, so — but i t ' s your testimony t h a t none of 

them are w i t h i n the — producing or completed w i t h i n the 

i n t e r v a l of what you're seeking today? 

A. No, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Bruce — 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — I see t h a t t h i s w e l l i s 

unorthodox, but i t was not advertised as such. What's 
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Mewbourne's plan on that? 

MR. BRUCE: We f i l e d an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

a p p l i c a t i o n . I — Let me see... 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I bel i e v e — 

MR. BRUCE: The advertisement d i d mention t h a t 

the w e l l i s a t an unorthodox l o c a t i o n , but i t was not 

adv e r t i s e d f o r approval of an unorthodox l o c a t i o n because 

t h a t was obtained by A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Order NSL-4606. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: So t h a t has been approved? 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: That's a l l the questions I 

have. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I have nothing f u r t h e r . 

I s there any follow-up? 

MR. BRUCE: I have nothing f u r t h e r . 

MR. FELDEWERT: No, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: The witness may stand down. 

MR. BRUCE: I have nothing f u r t h e r i n t h i s 

matter, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert, do you wish t o 

make any statement? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Other than the f a c t t h a t — I was 

a l i t t l e concerned about the f a c t t h a t there d i d n ' t appear 

t o be much e f f o r t between the time t h a t they f i l e d t h e i r — 

proposed the w e l l and the time they f i l e d t h e i r p o o l i n g 
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A p p l i c a t i o n t o reach an agreement w i t h a l l of the p a r t i e s 

here today. That i s of concern t o my c l i e n t s and I would 

t h i n k should be of concern t o the D i v i s i o n . 

The other p o i n t would be t h a t , you know, they're 

asking f o r the 200-percent maximum r i s k p e n a l t y here f o r 

t h i s w e l l . There are a number of b a i l o u t zones f o r t h i s 

l o c a t i o n . This c e r t a i n l y i s n ' t a w i l d c a t i n t o the Morrow, 

so I would question whether the D i v i s i o n should be 

a u t h o r i z i n g the 200-percent — using the same r i s k p e n a l t y 

f o r t h i s case as they would use f o r a w i l d c a t - t y p e of w e l l . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, my c l i e n t sent out a 

l e t t e r on May 30th proposing the w e l l , also proposing a 

term assignment. They never received any counter o f f e r 

from anyone except Heyco, and t h a t counter o f f e r wasn't 

u n t i l J u l y 19th. They've c a l l e d , they've w r i t t e n . These 

guys j u s t don't want t o j o i n i n the w e l l . They should be 

fo r c e pooled. 

As t o the r i s k penalty, i f i t ' s so r i s k - f r e e , 

then why don't they j o i n in? The nearest o f f s e t w e l l was 

dry i n the Morrow. I t produced from the Wolfcamp, th e r e 

may be d e p l e t i o n i n the Wolfcamp, which apparently i s the 

nearest other producing zone, and then the other w e l l s i n 

the area, there were some good producers, but t h e r e i s the 

r i s k of d e p l e t i o n . As the g e o l o g i s t s a i d , you won't know 
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what i t i s u n t i l you get down there. But there's obvious 

r i s k , e s p e c i a l l y f o r a 12,000-foot w e l l . 

The p a r t i e s should be force pooled, and a 2 00-

percent penalty, the maximum, should be imposed. 

Thank you. 

EX/AMINER BROOKS: Okay, very good. Thank you 

very much, gentlemen. Case Number 12,698 w i l l be taken 

under advisement. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

9:25 a.m.) 

* * * 
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